
 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION,  
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND 

HOUSING MEETING 
 

4.00 pm TUESDAY, 21ST SEPTEMBER, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 

being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 
above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Issues Arising from the End of European Funding   

 To consider the attached report 
 

3 - 12 

4. Merthyr Tydfil Recovery, Transformation & 
Improvement (RTI) Plan - Economic Recovery 
(Working Life) Theme  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

13 - 24 

5. Committee Work Programme 2021-2022   

 To consider the attached report 
 

25 - 38 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillor L Davies (Chair) 

                 G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: M Colbran, K Gibbs, J Thomas and 

S Thomas 
 
Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson, A Millar and 
R Stone 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Issues Arising as a Result of the End of European 
Funding  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  The UK’s decision to leave the European Union (EU) has had a momentous impact 
           on the political and economic landscape of the UK.  A number of large questions 

loom over the future including the position in relation to EU law, future trade 
agreements, and the prospect of diminishing EU funding. Such large policy decisions 
will shake up the governance framework and will have a significant impact on local 
government, including its funding and the legal framework in which it must operate. 

 
1.2 It is anticipated that the implications for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council with 

be significant.  This report will identify the primary issues arising from these changes 
in relation to the services for which the Chief Officer for Community Regeneration is 
accountable.   

 
1.3 It is proposed further work would need to be undertaken to identify the wider 

implications of the end of European funding on a corporate basis. 
  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 That the Committee receives the report and its content is noted and debated. 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Written Friday 10th September 2021 

Report Author Chief Officer, Community 
Regeneration 

Service Area Community Regeneration 

Committee Date 21st September 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Following the BREXIT referendum on the 23rd June 2016, the UK’s decision to leave 

the European Union (EU) has had a momentous impact on the political and 
economic landscape of the UK, and more specifically Wales.  A number of large 
questions loom over the future including the position in relation to EU law, future 
trade agreements, and the prospect of diminishing EU funding. Such large policy 
decisions will shake up the governance framework and will have a significant impact 
on local government, including its funding and the legal framework in which it must 
operate. 
 

3.2 The aim of EU Structural Funds was to contribute to the realisation of the European 
policy of economic and social cohesion; the funding resources are used to reduce 
the gaps in development between EU regions plus raise the standards of living for 
their inhabitants.   

 
3.3 The UK joined the UK in 1975 and, since this date, the Council has secured 

significant amounts of EU funding to enable delivery of projects which aim to support 
the regeneration of the County Borough’s infrastructure; through both physical 
regeneration programmes and projects/programmes which helped the people of 
Merthyr Tydfil to develop their skills, knowledge and abilities to actively engage in the 
local economy. 

 
3.4 Examples of the breadth of funding which has support the Council to deliver key 

services have been listed in Appendix 1.  Additionally, an overview of other 
organisations across the County Borough which successfully secured European 
funding to deliver programmes can be found in Appendix 2. 

 
3.5 This is the first of a series of three reports which are to be presented on the topic of 

the end of EU funding.  The aim of the reports is to enable Members of the 
Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee to understand the scope 
and scale of the challenges which will be placed on services for which the 
Community Regeneration Department is accountable for whilst considering the 
development of funding proposals after the EU funding has ended. 
 

3.6 More specifically, this first report will focus on the issues arising as a result of the 
end of EU funding.  Committee Members will be asked to share their views to 
further inform the work being undertaken by the department so that these might be 
considered when developing the plan for the future. 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Socio-economic regeneration, through increasing employment activities, 

encouraging business growth and tackling social disadvantage, is an important 
service for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and its partners.  These activities 
contribute to local strategic aims in advancing Merthyr Tydfil’s economic well-being 
and underpinning cross-cutting approaches to tackle deprivation that is still prevalent 
as a result of generational industrial decline. 
 
 
 

Page 4



4.2 From the time the UK joined the EU, Wales has been eligible to receive both 
European Structural Funds (ESF) and European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) to support socio-economic development. With higher levels of economic 
deprivation, the majority of areas across Wales have secured a significant amount of 
EU funding.  This was because Wales was one of the socially disadvantaged 
countries in Europe.  Many organisations in Wales have relied on EU funds in recent 
years for training programmes, skills programmes and large-scale infrastructure 
projects – all stable components of sustaining a buoyant, economic region.  

 
4.3 In 2015, the Conservative Party called for the referendum which required residents 

with the UK to vote as to whether the UK should leave the EU.  The outcome of this 
referendum (commonly called BREXIT) meant that the UK would leave the EU.  The 
UK government and the EU have now agreed a deal on their future relationship. 
Transition agreements were developed and would be managed by the central 
government. 
 

4.4 Funding was made available to the following entities in Table 1 below where 
eligibility was confirmed. Non-profit and non-governmental organisations; young 
people; researchers; farmers; small and medium-sized enterprises; public bodies; 
and others.  A cross section of organisations across Merthyr Tydfil have accessed 
EU funding.  Some of the larger scale projects led by MTCBC to have received 
European funding support which the Council has been involved in over the last 20 
years include: 
 

Project/Programme Date Lead Body 

Merthyr Tydfil Valleys Information & Technology Centre 2006 MTCBC 

Merthyr Tydfil Voluntary Sector Key Fund 2003 MTCBC 

Merthyr Tydfil Business Centre (Lifelong Learning Centre) 2006 MTCBC 

Cyfarthfa Enterprises – a Social Economy Trading Model 2003 MTCBC 

Merthyr Tydfil Action Partnership  2002 MTCBC 

Merthyr Tydfil Business Support Package 2003 MTCBC 

Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre Regeneration Project 2005 MTCBC 

Penydarren Tram-road Walking & Cycling Project 2006 MTCBC 

Pathways employability project 2003 MTCBC 

Neighbourhood Learning Programme 2003 MTCBC 

Neighbourhood Learning Centre 2005 MTCBC 

Growing to Succeed 2005 MTCBC 

Community Programmes 2005 MTCBC 

New Pathways employability programme 2004 MTCBC 

Genesis Employability Programme 2004 & 2006 

until 2012 

MTCBC 

Job Match 2006 – 2012 BGCBC 

Interreg VB SHARE Project  2012 - 2015 MTCBC 

Bridges into Work  2009-2015 TCBC 

Page 5

https://ec.europa.eu/regional_policy/en/funding/


 
Bridges into Work 2 2015 

(currently 

operational) 

TCBC 

Working Skills for Adults 2 2015 

(currently 

operational) 

TCBC 

Nurture Equip & Thrive 2018 

(currently 

operational) 

TCBC 

Communities for Work 2015 

(currently 

operational) 

Welsh Government 

         Table 1 
 
4.5 Table 2 below outlines a number of additional projects / programmes which the 

Council has supported - but not led on over this period. 
 

Project/Programme Date Lead Body 

North Merthyr Regeneration Partnership 2006 3Gs Development Trust 

Sustainable Management for Gelligaer & 

Merthyr Tydfil Commons 

2005 Gelligaer & Merthyr Tydfil Commons 

Association 

Out of School Hours Childcare Provision 2002 and 2005 Aberfan and Merthyr Vale Youth and 

Community Project 

Raising Aspirations and Fulfilling Potential 

Project  

2005 Gellideg Foundation 

Gurnos & Galon Uchaf Community & 

Physical Regeneration Programme 

2003 Groundwork Trust – Merthyr and 

RCT 

Merthyr Tydfil Sustainable Business Park 2005 Groundwork Trust – Merthyr and 

RCT 

Parc Taf Bargoed – Pobly y Lle project 2003 Groundwork Trust – Merthyr and 

RCT 

Community Development via the 

Community Wardens programme 

2004 Safer Merthyr Tydfil 

Community Capacity Building Team (2 x 

phases) 

2002 & 2004 Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil 

Enhanced Employability training 2002 & 2005 Merthyr Tydfil College 

The Oasis Youth Diversion Project 2002 Oasis, Merthyr Tydfil 

Merthyr Media project 2006 University of Glamorgan C8 

Interreg IVB COLLABOR8 Project 2008 South Kerry Development Trust 

(IRE) 

         Table 2 
 

 
 

Page 6



4.6 In addition, Table 3 below identifies a number of large scale programmes where 
Welsh Government acted as lead sponsor had a significant impact on Merthyr Tydfil.  
These include:  

 

 Communities First programme; 

 ReAct redundancy support project; 

 Valleys Rail Strengthening activities; 

 Skills Growth Wales; 

 Genesis 2 employability programme; 

 Dualling of the A465; 

 Jobs Growth Wales programme; 

 Flood and Coastal Risk Management 
programme; 

 Arbed am Byth; 

 Job Match programme; 

 Digital Tourism framework; 

 Communities for Work 

 Communities for Work Plus 

 Rural Development Programme 

 Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre 
Regeneration Programme - ERDF 

 Heritage Tourism programme; 

 Sustainable Tourism programme;  

 Credit Unions; 

 Peer mentoring programmes;  

 Spatial European Team finding; 

 Enterprise Networks; 

 Business innovation support;  

 Valleys Regional Park; 

 Next Generation Programme fund; 

 Waste and Resources Action 
Programme (WRAP); 

 Knowledge Exploitation Capacity 
Den; and 

 New Business Start-Up programme. 

 SEWCED Programme  

 Taff Bargoed Regeneration 
Programme - ERDF 

 

            Table 3 
 

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Table’s 4 & 5 below depicts the large number of ‘live’ EU programmes that are 

currently operational across the Community Regeneration Department. The majority 
of those projects cited below are solely reliant on EU funding with the team going 
through the process of better understanding the ramifications of decreased service 
delivery, staffing costs (redundancies etc.) and skill shortages once all EU funding 
ends. These programmes are as follows: 

 

ESF Funded Programmes: 

Programme 
Name 

Programme Type Current End 
Date 

Value Impact to date 
(as of the end 
of July 2021) 

Bridges into 
Work 2 

Employability 
Programme (25+) 

30th September 
2022 

 
(Project 

Closure until 
Dec 2022) 

£2,616,269 118 people 
gaining 

employment 
 

250 
Qualifications 

achieved 

Communities for 
Work 

Employability 
Programme (16+) 

30th June 2022 £2,833,360 278 people 
gaining 

employment 

Page 7



 

Communities for 
Work Plus 

Employability 
Programme for all 

31st March 
2022 

£1,926,000 479 people 
gaining 

employment 

Nurture Equip & 
Thrive 

Underemployment 
Programme 

30th September 
2022 

 
(Project 

Closure until 
Dec 2022) 

£799,799 130 improved 
labour market 

situation 

Working Skills 
for Adults 2 

Upskilling 
Programme 

30th September 
2022 

 
(Project 

Closure until 
Dec 2022) 

£2,494,523 1116 
qualifications 

achieved 

Inspire 2 
Achieve 

Preventative 
Programme 

31st October 
2022 

 
(Project 

Closure until 
Dec 2022) 

£2,878,264 145 reduced 
risk of NEET 

 
62 

Qualifications 
achieved 

Inspire to Work Employability 
Programme (16-

24) 

31st October 
2022 

 
(Project 

Closure until 
Dec 2022) 

£2,132,332 63 people 
gaining 

employment 
 

141 
qualifications 

achieved 

Table 4 
 

ERDF Funded Programmes: 

Programme 
Name 

Programme Type Current End 
Date 

Value Impact to date 
(as of the end 
of July 2021) 

Trail Gazers Trails & Marketing 
Development 

31st July 2019 
to 30th June 

2022 

£275,000 for 
Merthyr Tydfil 

Significant 
investment in 

trails 
infrastructure 
and marketing 

SuNSE Social Business 
Development 

1st April 2019 to 
31st March 

2022 

£280,000 for 
Merthyr Tydfil 

Over x50 social 
businesses / 

groups 
supported. 

YMCA Building for the 
Future - ERDF 

September 
2021 – 

December 2022 

£3.4m Project not 
started. 

Table 5 
 
 

 

Page 8



5.2 The loss of all EU funded programmes will have a huge impact on Merthyr Tydfil and 
our local communities. In addition, the Council could struggle to meet the emerging 
themes within the 15 year vision.   
 

5.3 Many of the current programmes identified in the above ‘tables’ have been running in 
different guises over the last 20 years, and in doing so, have developed rapport and 
relationship with our various communities, businesses, third sector organisations and 
stakeholders.  Unfortunately, should these imperative programmes cease fully once 
the EU funding ends then the Council needs to consider the potential, negative 
impacts cited below: 

 

 The loss of a service area which has been a main contributor to the 
employability agenda locally as well as a range of corporate strategies i.e. 
RT&I Plan, 

 x72 experienced support staff will be made redundant, 

 Redundancy bill amounting to circa £291,000.00 with EU funding not picking 
up the full cost of this.  It is important to note that ESF grant can only consider 
paying costs associated to the time worked on the programme.  Therefore, the 
local authority would be picking up the cost for around 70% of the projected 
total cost mentioned above. 

 Neighbourhood Learning Centre (NLC) currently houses various vocational 
training resources which simply will not run due to staffing issues. These 
include Carpentry, Plumbing, Plastering & ICT etc., 

 No community based delivery for up skilling, 

 No community based employability mentoring and support (borough wide) 

 No added value provision for future working with NEETS, 

 Loss of a single response within the local authority for all employability related 
support to local people, 

 No resource to service Economic Growth Partnership outputs, 

 Lack of resource to the service which won’t meet the demand of community 
benefit projects with new inward investors coupled with the offer of providing 
recruitment solutions for local people, 

 No ability to positively contributing towards to driving down rates of 
unemployment, 

 No ability to create meaningful vocational learning that will upskill workforces 
for the future. 

 
5.4 At present, there is a distinct sense of uncertainty surrounding the future direction 

and priorities post EU funding in the UK and Wales in particular. There is un-surety 
regarding how UK Government will administer replacement funding and whether 
Welsh Government, as a devolved government, will be given finance to assist its 
own Council’s. Importantly, the first instance of this ‘political bypassing of finance’ 
happened in April 2021 when the UK Government launched both their Community 
Renewal Fund (CRF) and Levelling-up Fund directly to specific Council’s in Wales.    

 
 

Page 9



5.5 Merthyr Tydfil was chosen as one of one hundred towns across the UK that were 
eligible to apply for the CRF. Each of the towns were allocated a possible £3m to 
assist in the development of projects across their county boroughs. The timescales 
were extremely tight for such a large pot of finance with the majority of applicants 
struggling to complete the application and submit within the required timeframe. The 
Council quickly shortlisted and sent the successful applications to UK Government 
for assessment where they stated that they would let everyone know the result by 
the end of July 2021. Disappointingly, the Council and the applicants are still yet 
to hear back from UK Government.  
 

5.6 In addition to the Council coordinating CRF applications from stakeholders we also 
had an opportunity to join a cohort of nine other South East Wales local Authorities in 
developing a project around regional employability. The project, led by Torfaen CC 
was submitted along with the other UK wide submissions, but similarly to above, we 
are yet to hear back from UK Government.  
 

5.7 In relation to capital investment in Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre, Welsh Government  
are making efforts to provide significant levels of capital funding towards Town 
Centre Regeneration but this is not a replacement of ERDF Funding and is not at the 
same scale of investment.   
 

5.8 There is still a lot of uncertainty regarding the lasting impacts of Covid-19 which is 
being exasperated by the lack of information coming from UK Government relating to 
the end of EU funding. At this point I time the Council are unable to anticipate what 
level of support we can provide. Considering this, the below bullet points capture 
some of the main areas of work that will still be prevalent next year and beyond: 

 

 Employment rates and the proficiency of businesses will all have a negative 
impact on the economy,   

 The loss of EU funded programmes with no future plans for sustaining current 
resources will limit the impact the Council has on the economy moving forward, 

 Future support to upskill people into different sectors will be required, 

 Who will support those individuals that are on the furlough scheme, which in 
January 2021, was a staggering 3,973 people in Merthyr Tydfil & Rhymney. 

 Future support will be required should any furloughing scheme continue with 
businesses subsequently suffering due to further impacts of covid-19 restrictions, 

 Welsh Government increased resource capacity within the current employability 
team to support more people affected by the pending end of furloughing, 

 Local people will need to retrain to be able to work in different sectors, 

 The will be a distinct skill shortage and targeted training across Wales and the UK 
i.e. haulage drivers, chefs etc. 

 
5.9  With any funding programme that employs staff there is always a risk staff leaving to 

secure other roles. Considering this, the Council runs the risk of potentially losing our 
EU funded staff; a majority of which are highly skilled and proficient in the own 
respective areas. This significant loss of experienced and qualified resource will also 
have a negative impact on the Council’s objectives set-out in our RT&I Plan. 

 

Page 10



5.10 Naturally, the negative impacts of the end of EU funding is far wider than the 
services that the department provides. For example, the majority of the employability 
services have embedded working practices into non-traditional local authority areas 
of work.  Below are a number of practical cases of interdepartmental working: 

 

 Using Communities for Work staffing resource to locate NEET young people 
with a view to supporting and offering options of engagement, 

 The use of a dedicated employability resource within the Children Looked 
After Team that focuses on offering support for learning and employment, 

 More recently, the department has been using our own staffing resource 
within the Neighbourhood Learning Centre to offer year 11 pupils an 
alternative curriculum. 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The Council should be in a position where we fully understand what the next phases 

of funding are i.e. Shared Prosperity Fund. We should also understand what their 
priority areas are, whether finance is competitive or allocated and how the Council 
can access those pots of finance from the likes of UK Government or whether that it 
will be filtered down to Welsh Government. 

 
6.2 Through the development of the Council’s new Economic Recovery Plan we will be 

in a position where we will know what the priorities are for the people of Merthyr 
Tydfil and have thematic action plans which are focussed on achieving set 
outcomes. 

 
6.3 The Community Regeneration Department has a broad understanding of the various 

EU funding streams that we have managed over the years. However, there is a 
belief that we should better understand the full extent of EU funding across the 
Council as well as that of our localised stakeholders.  

 
6.4 The department will continue to undertake our diagnostic reviews of all sectors in 

Merthyr Tydfil in order to ensure that we fully understand the needs of the business 
community and where our priorities should be in ensuring that they are fully 
supported. 

 
6.5 There is a specific requirement where we should consider the long-term 

sustainability of the employability provision and we need to consider the over 
reliance on external funding for that provision. 

 
6.6 The department will continue to meet our corporate objectives as well as continuing 

to be at the forefront of delivering our ‘employability’ objectives ensuring that the 
provision is accessible to all.   

 
6.7 The Council will continue our partnership approach where we will continue to work 

with our colleagues in other local authorities to develop South East Wales regional 
plan around ’employability’. 

 

Page 11



6.8 We will continue to develop relevant physical regeneration masterplans aligned to 
physical regeneration to ensure that we maximise the impact of such potential 
projects like Hoovers (as well as others).  

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The Community Regeneration Department will initiate an exercise where we will 

explore the full extent of EU funding across the Council as well as the funding 
associated with our external partners. This in turn will give the Council a complete 
understanding of how vital EU funding is for the county borough and the extent of 
what potentially needs to be replaced thereafter. 

 
7.2  We will continue to liaise with both UK and Welsh Government to ensure that the 

Council fully understands the priorities and timescales associated with any future 
funding streams such as the Shared Prosperity Fund as well as others.  

 
7.3 The department will continue to undertake our various thematic diagnostics 

assessments as well as speak with local businesses to ensure that we are fully 
informed of current business needs. 

 
7.4 We will continue to share information internally across all Council departments which 

has worked extremely well since the Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
7.5 The department will consider our current position with a view of developing our 

employability aspirations in relation to the Council’s 15 year vision to ensure that our 
objectives are both achievable and sustainable.  

 
7.6 We will continue to monitor the local landscape so that the Council fully understands 

the socio-economic impact of the current Covid-19 pandemic where we will consider 
hardships surrounding unemployment, workless households, furlough etc.  

 
7.7 The department will continue to represent the Council at all skills partnership working 

groups across the Cardiff Capital Region. 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / CHIEF 
OFFICER: COMMUNITY REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
DEPUTY LEADER / PORTFOLIO 

MEMBER FOR REGENERATION; 
TRANSFORMATION, & 
COMMERCIALISATION 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background documents 
which have been relied on in 
preparing the report. E.g. previous 
minutes of relevant committees 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
Page 12



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

MTCBC Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement (RTI) Plan:  Economic Recovery 
(Working Life) Theme   
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 In 2019/2020; following the Council’s request to Welsh Government for support to 
manage future challenges; the Council responded by developing a Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement (RTI) Plan.  This Plan supports and enables the 
efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate plan and well-being 
objectives.  Through delivering the plan, outcomes for the residents of Merthyr Tydfil 
are likely to improve. 

 
1.2 The current RTI Plan has eight sections; three of the key priorities identified are: 
 
                    -    Improving Standards in Education;  
                    -    Increasing Resilience in Social Care; and 
                    -    Supporting Economic Recovery.   
  
1.3      Scrutiny committee members have requested the Chief Officer of Community 

Regeneration provide a report on the Economic Recovery theme of the RTI Plan.  
The report was to include details of on the key improvement and recovery activities 
identified for action within the Plan; what has been achieved to date; information on 
any issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome; and 
information on future priorities which are to be addressed through its delivery. 

 

Date Written 24th August 2021 

Report Author Chief Officer - Community 
Regeneration 

Service Area Community Regeneration 

Committee Date 21st September 2021 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 Committee Members discuss and comment on the issues set out in the report; and 
provide appropriate challenge to its content; enabling them to secure assurance that 
positive progress is being made on the improvement/recovery activities identified. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

3.1 In 2019/2020; the Council contacted Welsh Government to request support to help 

our organisation manage identified challenges faced. Welsh Government appointed 

an independent Assurance & Improvement Board; and collaboratively, work began to 

consider areas of Transformation and Improvement.  The result of this work was the 

development of the corporate Recovery, Transformation and Improvement (RTI) 

Plan.   

3.2 The RTI Plan consists eight focus areas or themes; and considers 3 essential 

elements, namely:   

 our recovery from the coronavirus pandemic (including how we can learn from 

our experiences to shape our way forward);   

 our transformation (the things we need to change to increase sustainability and 

improve);   

 all leading to our improvement (addressing the key performance issues to 
improve outcomes for our residents).    

 
3.3 The key emerging themes were to improve our education standards; improving the 

resilience of health and social care services; and supporting economic recovery in 

response to the pandemic.  This last point is also a preventative measure to try to 

reduce the impact of the pandemic on our residents (e.g.) if we can limit 

unemployment though supporting businesses, we can also reduce demand on our 

benefits system.  

3.4 Scrutiny committee members have requested the Chief Officer of Community 

Regeneration provide a position statement on the Working Life/Economic 

Recovery theme within the RTI Plan.  Members have requested an update on the 

key improvement and recovery activities identified within the Plan; as well as 

information on what has been achieved to date.  Information on any issues/barriers 

experienced is encouraged, along with information on how these have been 

overcome; as well as information on future priorities which are to be addressed 

through its delivery. 

3.5 The Committee will review the report; considering its content and providing 
constructive critical challenge around its content to better understand the detail 
contained therein; as well as to identify how the improvement activities is meeting 
wider corporate priorities; and supporting the Council’s wellbeing objectives. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 On completion of the RTI Plan; four key elements were identified where specific 

focus on development and improvement were to be made.  These were: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 Details of the key actions supporting delivery of the plan can be found in Appendix 1 

of this report. 

4.3 Work began on delivering the content of the RTI Plan in August 2020.   
 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 It has been 12 months since work began on delivering what had been identified 

within the Working Life / Economic Recovery element of the RTI Plan.  We have 
included a high-level overview of the progress made to date in paragraph 5.2 below: 

 

Objective 
Project 

Start Date 

Target 
Progress to 

Date 

Actual 
Progress to 

Date 

RAYG      
Status 

Develop a 15 year Vision for 
the economy of Merthyr Tydfil 

01/07/2020 100% 69% Amber 

Realign the Economic Growth 
Strategy and create an 
Economic Recovery Board 

01/07/2020 99% 76% Green 

Undertake detailed analysis of 
business activities and services  

01/07/2020 28% 20% Green 

Develop and grow the 
connections between the 
business sector and Merthyr 
Tydfil’s education provision 

01/07/2020 33% 33% Green 

 
 
 

WORKING LIFE / ECONOMIC RECOVERY – Recovery & Improvement Priorities 
         

                                 
 

Develop a 15-year Economic 
Vision for the County 

Borough 

Realign the Economic 
Growth Strategy and 
create an Economic 

Recovery Board 

Analyse business activities and 
services, including a specific focus 
on Covid-19, to secure improved 

economic outcomes 

Develop and grow 
connections between the 

business sector and Merthyr 
Tydfil’s education providers 

 

 

Page 15



5.2 Key Challenges: Develop a 15-Year Economic Vision for the economy of 
Merthyr Tydfil 

 It has been an opportunity to redesign the whole approach to developing strategies 
within Community Regeneration.  A key challenge has streamlining a plethora of old 
and new community strategies into one single vision for the local authority. 

 The strategy has had to evolve to take into consideration the impact of Covid-19 and 
this has been difficult due to the fluid nature of Covid-19 and the impact it has had 
and continues to have on the economy. 

 Consultation with businesses/stakeholders proved challenging. Many businesses 
were closed due to lockdown at the time of consultation and it highlighted the fact 
that many businesses were digitally challenged too, with many not able to respond to 
the consultation. 

 During the initial phases of development at the start of the pandemic, staff were sent 
home to work, there were time delays on staffing having the appropriate equipment 
to work from home. 

 Staff within Community Regeneration were requested to mobilise in alternative roles 
during the pandemic, coupled with large amount of grant aid having to be managed 
creating alternative mandatory priorities for the department to focus on. 

 Staffing within Community Regeneration decreased significantly at times due to the 
contraction of Covid amongst the team. 

 
To overcome some of the challenges faced; 
 

 Involvement of key officers within Community Regeneration that were leading on the 
broad range of strategies that the council had and those that were in development - 
brought staff along with the new way of thinking 

 Involvement of businesses and key stakeholders in the consultation and design of 
the vision 

 Introduction of electronic means for filling out surveys to encourage stakeholder 
participation whilst businesses were locked down. 

 Utilised the key links that our corporate Employer Liaison Officers had with 
employers, businesses and third sector to stimulate and generate interest in surveys 
being conducted.  This also allowed us to have a far more targeted approach. 

 Ensuring a fluid approach to the structure of the vision.  15 year vision with 3 year 
action plans linked to all the themes which allow us to deliver, review and change 
course of direction if required or introduce new themes if need be. 

 
5.3  Key Challenges: Realign the Economic Growth Partnership and Create an    

Economic Recovery Board 

 A new governance structure was required for the development of the Economic 
Recovery Board and Economic Growth Partnership.  Key dialogue required at a 
strategic level, which took time to ensure clear rationale for the design. 

 Design of membership for each group was critical.  This required careful 
consideration to ensure membership was able to provide valuable contributions to 
future discussions and developments.  Membership required stakeholders that could 
provide focus, be influential, impartial and also have the autonomy to make decisions 
that would have a positive impact on future developments and be able to respond to 
future demand. 

 Lack of involvement from elected members at the early stages of the design of the 
groups, hindered timescales as new governance models required further discussion 
prior to sign off. Page 16



 Concerns over future European funding ceasing and now future plans being made 
clear by UK Government and Welsh Government at this stage.  
 

To overcome some of the challenges faced; 
 

 Ensured that the corporate approach was discussed with all potential partners 
demonstrating what each partner could bring to the table.  Looking at what strategic 
influence is available through partners and looking at operational and responsive 
resources available to respond to future demands of inward investment. 

 Developed a clear and defined difference of what the EGP and ERB would focus on 
with tor’s developed with clear objectives – series of information sessions with 
everyone involved with the presentation of new governance structure and new 
Terms of References for both groups. 

 Key staff aligned to local and regional working groups to ensure MTCBC are part of 
regional planning for future replacement funding. 

 Use of the Economic Growth Partnership to influence the development and design of 
the Kickstart scheme to create a potential 95 jobs within MTCBC and with external 
businesses. 

 
5.3 Key Challenges: Analysis of businesses and services; including focus on 

 emerging data around the impact of Covid-19 on business; 

 During the Covid-19 pandemic it was decided that the department needed to find out 
the potential impact that the virus was having / will have on all of our local 
businesses. A pilot diagnostic review was quickly developed and undertaken which 
focussed solely on social business sector initially which was completed via email / 
telephone. Once happy, a more accessible online questionnaire was developed and 
sent to all business sectors in Merthyr Tydfil which was thematically led by different 
Council teams as well as external stakeholders. The findings were really useful in 
terms of understanding the potential impact, accessing of grants schemes, staffing 
issues and economic pinch points to name a few. 

 
5.4 Key Challenges: Develop and grow connections between the business sector 

and    Merthyr Tydfil education provision 

 Took time for internal stakeholders to design and agree the BETP concept. 

 Internal challenges finding common ground on the design which promoted many 
discussions. 

 Design of stakeholder involvement took time to agree.  

 Stakeholders to buy into the concept took longer than expected as it was a new 
approach and focus. 

 
To overcome some of the challenges faced; 

 

 Ensured a robust design of a new Terms of Reference for BETP for internal officers 
and stakeholders involved. 

 Chief Officer – Community Regeneration and Employability Manager attending EPP 
meeting to highlight corporate approach and aspirations along with previous working 
examples of how Community Regeneration have worked with businesses and 
schools to enhance curriculum delivery. 

 Development of an BETP action plan that will focus on opportunities 
 

Page 17



 Community Regeneration building relationships with new inward investors i.e. Future 
Valleys and Morgan Sindall and utilising social value plans to compliment education 
in Merthyr Tydfil and securing seats for them as part of the longer term planning of 
the BETP 

 

Achievements to Date 

5.5 Throughout the first year of delivery, the following achievements have been noted: 

 Completion of a series of stakeholder consultation opportunities has supported the 
ongoing development and refinement of the draft 15-Year Economic Vision; 

 Refocusing of the role and membership of the Economic Growth partnership, 
(including a refresh of the Partnership’s Terms of Reference) to support greater 
alignment with the Council’s priorities; 

 Creation of the Council’s Economic Recovery Board ERCB); including the 
development of robust governance arrangements.  The ERCB is an internal strategic 
group which fulfils a monitoring and challenge role in relation to the activities within 
the Economic Recovery element within the RTI Plan; providing constructive critical 
challenge where required; 

 Comprehensive analysis of the first phase of Covid-19 related data collected 
supported the identification of the scope and scale of support that needed to be 
offered; and enabled targeted support to be effectively provided to inform future 
support offer.  These arrangements enabled to Council’s Community Regeneration 
and Revenues and Benefits teams to work with local businesses to secure over £40 
million of grant funding, supporting businesses to remain viable through both national 
and local lockdowns 

 The establishment of the Business and Education Together Partnership (BETP) has 
been completed; the partnership group’s primary aim is to develop and grow the 
connections between the business sector in Merthyr Tydfil and the education 
providers across the County Borough.   

 Integration and collaboration have been the cornerstone of the work undertaken by 
the service areas.  We have changed the way we work across the organisation in 
many cases further developing working relationships to achieve unforeseen benefits 
(e.g.) closer working arrangements between our service areas and the Revenues 
and Benefits team has enabled us to more effectively meet the needs of local 
businesses.  We plan to sustain and continue to develop this work by exploring and 
introducing a corporate CRM (Customer Relationship Management) system which 
will further enhance the coordination of internal and external support to Businesses.  

 The well-developed working relationships with key external partners and 
stakeholders have enhanced the teams’ responsiveness to the challenges faced.  
The breadth of work undertaken linked to managing the requirements the pandemic 
response introduced has been on a huge scale and largely reactive at the start of the 
process. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 In achieving this and delivering our RTI Plan, it will mean that we will no longer 

require the support of the IAB provided by WG.  The Council appreciates this support 
that has allowed us to arrive at this point and providing focus for us to transform and 
improve.    Page 18



6.2 To be in this position we will not only need to improve but also ensure we are 
sustainably doing so.  This means longer term financial planning and continuing the 
learning from changes during the pandemic.  Utilising external funding and our 
partnership working is going to be key to this.  

 
6.3     We want to deliver the RTI Plan to provide better outcomes for both the residents of 

Merthyr Tydfil; and those persons who work or visit here.  This means we will have 
improved on our performance and in turn will mean we will better contribute to the 7 
national well-being goals. 

 
6.4    In delivering the Working Life / Economic Recovery theme within the RTI Plan, we will 

not only need to improve but also ensure we are sustainably doing so.  This means 
identifying options around longer term financial planning; and continuing to learn 
from changes experienced during, as a result of, the pandemic.  Utilising external 
funding and our partnership working is going to be key to this.  

 
6.5  The Council will need to develop new skillsets to take forward the ‘to be’ principle 

statement of “have a strong unified commercial ethos and economic 
development principles; with sufficient capacity and skills to bring economic 
benefit to Merthyr Tydfil and a financial return to MTCBC”. 
 

6.6 In order to progress this, as was highlighted in the recent Council report which was 
presented on 16th June 2021, a number of phases were proposed to drive the 
introduction of commercialisation within the Council. 
 
The phases are:- 
 
Phase 1 – Establishment of the commercial unit and improving resource resilience 
This is currently in progress, the commercial unit structure has been developed and 
agreed and actioned and the recruitment process for additional resource is in 
progress.  The resource now sits within the community regeneration structure so it 
makes sense to being the RTI plans together to mirror the internal structure. 
 
Phase 2 – Investigating how the council delivers its services 
This phase will be critical in fully understanding how the services are structured, 
financed and delivered.  This will investigate the potential for revising service 
structure in terms of outcomes for residents, improving service offers and 
determining best finance options.  Also included in this phase is the review of 
existing contracts and spend and linking this information with intelligence gathered 
through the issue of grants during the pandemic. 

 
Phase 3 – Looking at our external environment and stakeholders 
Developing solutions with our stakeholders and other anchor institutions to further 
community wealth building 

 
Phase 4 – Integration with economic development 
Integrating further our economic development efforts with commercial priorities, 
creating synergies between commercial opportunities and economic regeneration. 

 
6.7 In order to fully benefit from the merging of economic recovery and growth, and 

commercial opportunities, it makes sense to bring both areas together under the RTI 
plan.  This ensures that focus is on aligning strategies and maximising potential 

Page 19



outcomes.  The prospect of merging commercialisation and working life will ensure 
that the money the Council spends in the course of its business is organised through 
the lens of supporting the working life strategy and having a direct positive effect on 
economic growth in the County Borough. It provides a sense of direction for 
commercial projects as they are identified and delivered.  

 
6.8 Within the RTI plan there are a number of crossovers with respect to 

commercialisation and Working Life. In terms of linking these areas with working life 
there are specific points to note 

 

 Economic Growth – how we organise our approach to markets can have a 
significant effect on local economic growth.  We will be seeking to better 
engage with our local economy.  This will include the creation and publication 
of a selling to Merthyr guide.  Meet the buyer events will be planned with other 
local anchor institutions to help our local economy understand what is in our 
pipeline.  Through local economic development support we should plan to 
upskill local business to understand how they need to tender for requirements 
and at the same time the Council will be reducing bureaucracy in its processes 
to simplify tendering and quotation requirements.  The first step in 
accomplishing this was to increase our lower procurement threshold to £15K 
from £5K which does not require formal procurement processes to be actioned, 
making it easier for the Council to appoint local suppliers where it has been 
identified that there is local supply in the market.  

 We will explore opportunities to build local wealth.  Maximising our local spend 
and also seeking to support the creation of local cooperatives or mutual putting 
power into the hands of local people 

 Understanding the economic environment – using the data collected during the 
pandemic and matching this data with our spend data through Atamis (spend 
analysis) will provide a holistic view of the local market.  This data will be 
utilised to inform approaches to buying goods, services and works in an 
organised way that maximises the potential for localising our supply chains and 
reducing their carbon footprint.   

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1  Re-engage the Council's key stakeholders to share the key findings and test   

Economic Vision and Recovery Plan by priority sectors; securing further feedback on 
the proposed approach. 

 
7.2  Continue to review opportunities to develop a central repository for the collation of   

cross-partner data that will enable better informed decision-making across the 
partnership 

 
7.3  Using intelligence gathered as part of the Economic Recovery Board’s activities; 

develop a Work Programme for the Board to retain focus on the identified priorities 
for development/improvement. 

 
7.4  Revisit the opportunities around the introduction of a Customer Relationship 

Management system to further explore the viability of this as a transformation and 

Page 20



improvement tool that would benefit the support offered to the public and key 
stakeholders.   

 
7.5 Continue to work with the BETP to develop opportunities to secure intelligence on 

learner aspirations so these can be encompassed in relevant programmes. 
 
7.6 Create resilience within the newly established commercial unit and employ staff to 

take forward the development of the commercial programme. 
 
7.7 Align the actions within the Economic Recovery plan to associated partnerships and 

lead officers (example the Destination Development theme aligned to the destination 
development partnership)  

 
 
8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Delivery of the RTI Plan not only supports delivery of Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community (the Council’s Corporate Wellbeing Plan); thereby making positive 
progress against the Council’s wellbeing objectives; it also enables us to use the 5 
ways of working even more widely as we develop different ways to involve our 
stakeholders to gather views and consider feedback in future service planning and 
delivery. 

8.2 Our economic recovery will directly help us deliver the Working Life objective.  By 
strengthening the economy, mitigating unemployment and integrating activities with 
teams delivering the Best Start; Environmental Wellbeing and Living Well objectives, 
we will continue to support people to develop skills and provide opportunities for 
employment.  We will use the lessons learned throughout the pandemic to be better 
placed to support local businesses to remain sustainable; thereby sustaining 
opportunities for jobs. 

8.3 The experience gained through the actions undertaken to date will further inform the 
work we do when developing the next iteration of the corporate plan. 

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / CHIEF 
OFFICER: COMMUNITY REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
DEPUTY LEADER / PORTFOLIO 

MEMBER FOR REGENERATION; 
TRANSFORMATION, & 
COMMERCIALISATION 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have been 
relied on in preparing the 
report. E.g. previous minutes 
of relevant committees 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 21



BREAKDOWN OF KEY ACTIONS:  Working Life / Economic Recovery 
 

Create a 15-Year Economic Vision 
for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 

Realign the Economic Growth 
Partnership & create an Economic 

Recovery Board  

Undertake detailed analysis of 
business activities & services 

(including a specific focus on the 
impact of Covid-19 

Develop and grow the connections 
between the business sector and 

Merthyr Tydfil’s Education provision 

Secure evidence for the 
development of key themes and 
build into the proposals for the 
Vision statement / Recovery 
Plan 

Using new and developed 
evidence bases; engage with 
the Economic Growth 
Partnership (EGP) to review key 
findings of Vision and Recovery 
Plan; identify the impact on the 
draft Economic Growth Strategy 
(EGS) 

Develop a model to be used to 
undertake data and information 
capture 

Develop a work-stream to 
enable children and young 
people to have the opportunity 
to experience wider employment 
opportunities 

Phase 1 consultation:  involve 
key stakeholders in testing 
possible themes 

Creation of an Economic 
Recovery Board 
 

Discuss and identify an 
appropriate data analysis tool 
for the collection and collation of 
data captured 

Develop opportunities to secure 
intelligence on learner 
aspirations so these can be 
encompassed in relevant 
programmes 

Develop a draft Vision and 
Recovery Plan document to be 
further tested through Phase 2 
consultation 

Establish a robust data 
management component to 
EGP which will allow partners to 
share information regarding 
local resource and delivery 

Ensure data is converted into 
meaningful intelligence which 
can be used to shape response 
themes which can be actioned 
to meet identified needs 

Cascade findings of aspiration 
activities with other key groups 
(i.e.) EGP; CRPPH Board; 
regional groups to support 
partners to further develop their 
offer to learners 

Phase 2 consultation: re-engage 
with a cross-section of 
stakeholders to review proposed 
Vision and Recovery                 
Plan to further define 

Identify stakeholders to be sit on 
the Economic Recovery Board  

Develop a key findings 
document with data presented in 
the most appropriate format to 
support presentation to a varied 
audiences 

 

Page 1 of 2 

P
age 22



 
Create a 15-Year Economic Vision 
for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 

Realign the Economic Growth 
Partnership & create an Economic 
Recovery Board  

Undertake detailed analysis of 
business activities & services 
(including a specific focus on the 
impact of Covid-19 

Develop and grow the connections 
between the business sector and 
Merthyr Tydfil’s Education provision 

Update intelligence gathered 
finalise the Vision and Recovery 
Plan; align with organisational 
values and ensure sufficient 
resources are in place              
to support effective delivery 

Using key themes identified 
through discussion; ensure ERB 
are involved in shaping the 
Vision and Recovery Strategy 
development 

Analyse 1st phase Covid-19 
related data and identify scale of 
support to date; effectiveness of 
this and use to inform future 
support offer 

 

 Develop a Term of Reference 
for the Group to support them to 
work together to meet 
challenges 

  

 Develop an initial Action Plan 
outlining key work-streams of 
the Economic Recovery Plan 
have good oversight; and robust 
performance/ management 
processes. 

  

 The Recovery Board develops a 
Forward Work Programme to 
ensure all elements of the Plan 
receives appropriate scrutiny 

  

 Ensure annual reviews are 
factored into timelines to ensure 
realignment/refocus regularly 
occurs 

  

P
age 23



 

Page 24



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Committee Forward Work Programme 2021/2022  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Committee’s Work Programme for consideration; and to prepare in 
advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the Forward Work Programme revising or amending it as 
deemed appropriate; and considers the questions at 3.7 in planning for the next 
meeting.  

 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached Forward Work Programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 

Date Written 4 September 2021 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 14 September 2021 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

Page 26



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 27



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 28



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 30



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Cabinet Member & 
Officer(s)  

Scrutiny Focus  Cross-Cutting Strategies 
and Plans 

25/05/2021 

Draft Committee 
Work Programme 
2021-2022 

 Committee Chair 
 Committee Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme 

and to officially agree and sign off the Work 

Programme for 2020-2021 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

25/05/2021 

Discussion around 
Housing and 
Homelessness 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Members 
 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 
 Housing Officer(s) 

The Committee has received reports on the current 
position and pressures placed on housing services in 
relation to both housing and homelessness.  Current 
Welsh Government legislative in relation to housing 
and homelessness directs that now has a statutory 
obligation to re-house those persons in temporary 
accommodation as a result of the ongoing pandemic.  
This adds substantial pressures to the Council and 
there’s a requirement to identify innovative ways to 
house this client group.  Additionally, the 
requirement is not solely focused on 
accommodation, but also the support that must be 
put in place to enable the clients to sustain their 
tenancy.  
The Committee will discuss a suggested approach to 
this issue with the Cabinet Members and Chief 
Officer/officers to establish how a cohesive overview 
of the situation can be secured, and thereby 
supporting development of collaborative solutions 
which can be addressed collectively.  

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 
 

P
age 31



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

06/07/2021 

Update from South 
Wales Police 

 Portfolio Members 

 Chief Officer 

 Head of Economic 
Development 

 Head of Protection & 
Safety Services 

Driving Service Improvement in Public Services:  The 
Regeneration and Public Protection Committee 
discharges the Council’s statutory Crime & Disorder 
responsibilities.   

Officers from South Wales Police are to be invited to 
attend a committee meeting to offer an overview of 
their current activity across the County Borough, and 
provide an update on key issues faced.  Areas of 
specific interest include anti-social behaviour; and 
the ‘101’ service operated by Police.  

Crime & Disorder Act 
1998 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

 

06/07/2021    

The Regeneration 
of Hoover Strategic 
Regeneration Area 
and Glebeland  
Street 

*EXEMPT ITEM* 

 Portfolio Members 
 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 

 Head of Protection & 
Safety Services 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  Committee Members seek a 
report on the ongoing activity linked to the 
developing proposals regarding regeneration of the 
Hoover Strategic Regeneration Area.   

Focus on the future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

21/09/2021 

Recovery, 
Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 

 Portfolio Members 
 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 
  

Driving Service Improvement in Public Services:  The 
Council’s Recovery, Transformation & Improvement 
Plan, leading on the response to recovery and 
support to communities across the County Borough.  
The services for which the Chief Officer – Community 
Regeneration is accountable for are key responders 
to the work to support economic recovery. 

The Committee seeks a report offering an overview 
of the key actions/tasks being developed and 
delivered as part of this activity.  Detail on how this 
activity aligns and integrates with other themes in 
the Recovery Transformation and Improvement Plan 
and wider corporate priorities would be welcomed. 

Focus on the future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

 

P
age 32



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

21/09/2021 

The Identified 
Issues Arising as a 
result of the end of 
EU Funding  
 
 

 Portfolio Members 

 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 
 Employability Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members 
identified that, with the current EU funding 
arrangements are due to end in 2022; it is 
anticipated there could be a significant impact on a 
number of services and programmes currently being 
delivered across the County Borough. 

In the first of three papers; the Committee seek a 
report on the issues which would be faced across the 
Council as a result of the end of all forms of European 
funding which currently supports a number of 
services for our communities. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
& Improvement Plan 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Economic Growth 
Strategy 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Public Services Board - 
‘Strong Economy’ 

Welsh Government – 
Prosperity for All 

02/11/2021 

Housing and 
Homelessness 

 Portfolio Members 
 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 
 Housing Officer(s) 

 Representatives -
Registered Social 
Landlords 

Following earlier discussions, the Committee seeks to 
receive an update on the progress made to date in 
relation to the issues and/or challenges presented by 
a change in Welsh Government legislation pertaining 
to housing and homelessness. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 
 

P
age 33



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

14/12/2021 

The Implications of 
the End of EU 
Funding  
 
 

 Portfolio Members 

 Chief Officer 

 Head of Economic 
Development 

 Employability Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members 
identified that, with the current EU funding 
arrangements are due to end in 2022; it is 
anticipated there could be a significant impact on a 
number of services and programmes currently being 
delivered across the County Borough. 

In the second of three papers; the Committee seeks a 
report on the issues which would be faced as a result 
of the end of all forms of European funding might 
have on our communities. 

  

 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
& Improvement Plan 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Economic Growth 
Strategy 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Public Services Board - 
‘Strong Economy’ 

Welsh Government – 
Prosperity for All 

25/01/2022 

Crucible/Cyfarthfa 
Plan 

 Portfolio Members 

 Chief Officer 
 Head of Economic 

Development 
 Strategic Regeneration 

Manager 

Following reports received by the Committee 
throughout its development stages; the Crucible Plan 
was signed off by Full Council in 2021.  The multi-
million pound project has been developed 
collaboratively and could have a significant impact on 
the destination/tourism industry as it progresses. 

Committee Members have requested to be kept up 
to date with the progress of this with it being such a 
significant project. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
& Improvement Plan 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Economic Growth 
Strategy 

DRAFT Destination 
Management Plan 
(developing) 

P
age 34



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Welsh Government – 
Prosperity for All 

08/03/2022 

Sexual Violence 
 

 Portfolio Members 
 Representatives from 

New Pathways 

 Chief Officer 
 Head of Protection & 

Safety Services 

During the last municipal year, the Committee 
received New Pathways who offered a presentation 
around sexual violence and the instances and impact 
this issue has across the County Borough.  
Committee Members advised there would be benefit 
in receiving a further update to explore ways in 
which we could work collaboratively (e.g.) developing 
links in schools etc. 

The Committee requests a report be presented to 
offer updates on progress made to date; and to 
identify the impact that this collaborative has on the 
issue. 

Crime & Disorder Act 
1998 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Violence against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence (Wales) 
Act 2015 
 

08/03/2022 

End of EU Funding: 
Proposed Successor 
Funding 
 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members have 
explored the issues and implications that the end of 
EU funding might have on a number of services and 
programmes currently being delivered to community 
members across the County Borough. 

In the last of three papers; the Committee would 
welcome a report on the position in regards to 
anticipated successor funding (e.g.) the Shared 
Prosperity Fund.   Information on the current 
position regarding replacement/legacy funding and 
how this could be accessed to sustain key, critical 
services delivered by the Council should be included.  
Committee Members are keen to understand more 
around this; and the possible risks in delays of 
subsequent replacement funding might have on 
citizens and the services’ sustainability in the longer 
term.  

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our 
community 

Recovery, Transformation 
& Improvement Plan 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

Economic Growth 
Strategy 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Public Services Board - 
‘Strong Economy’ 

Welsh Government – 
Prosperity for All 

P
age 35



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

  

This information will enable Committee Members to 
be clear on any significant changes; and work with 
officers to try to ensure minimum impact is felt by 
communities across the County Borough; and the 
Council itself as a result of this significant change. 

26/04/2022      

Additional topics for consideration 

Topic Source of  Suggestion Description Scheduled 

Hoover Master 
Plan 

Member of the Public Public awareness around the proposed development of the Hoover site is 
growing and people are keen to find out more about what is being discussed, 
what impact any development would have on the people living in the areas 
around the Hoover site as well as to find out what role the Council will play in 
this. This development is understood to align with the ongoing development of 
the Cardiff and the Regions City Deal Offer and the Committee would seek to 
explore key requirements etc. 

 

Kickstart 
Programme 
 

Links to Recovery, 
Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 

National government have introduced the Kickstart scheme as part of their 
recovery programmes responding to the ongoing pandemic.  Kickstart provides 
funding to employers to create jobs for 16 to 24 year olds on Universal Credit.  
Kickstart is seen as a key tool to support economic recovery. 

 

Placemaking Plans Arising from 
Committee 
discussions 

This proposed topic was identified at the joint Work Programme planning 
meeting on Monday 10th May.  Previously the Committee has received 
information on Town Centre Place-Making Plan; it has been proposed that this 
topic be looked at from a wider perspective. 

 

Redevelopment of 
the YMCA 

Arising from 
Committee 
discussions 

The Committee has previously voiced a need to understand more about the 
redevelopment of the YMCA building at Pontmorlais.  Previous discussions 
highlighted the complexity of the funding plan to develop this asset. 
 
Committee Members request an update be provided to them who were keen to 
secure up-to-date information on progress to date.   

 

P
age 36



Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Issues Arising from the End of European Funding
	4 Merthyr Tydfil Recovery, Transformation & Improvement (RTI) Plan - Economic Recovery (Working Life) Theme
	5 Committee Work Programme 2021-2022
	Appendix


